
 

 

 

Simon Hobbs 
Director of Legal and 
Democratic Services 
County Hall 
Matlock 
Derbyshire 
DE4 3AG 
 
Extension 38394 
Direct Dial 01629 538394 
Ask for Juliette 
Normington 
 

 
PUBLIC 

 
To:  Members of Cabinet  Member meeting - Health and Communities 
 
 
 

Friday, 24 January 2020 
 
Dear Councillor, 
 
Please attend a meeting of the Cabinet  Member meeting - Health and 
Communities to be held at 1.00 pm on Monday, 3 February 2020 in 
Committee Room 4 at County Hall, Matlock, DE4 3AG, the agenda for 
which is set out below. 
 
Yours faithfully, 

 
Simon Hobbs 
Director of Legal and Democratic Services  
 
A G E N D A 
 
PART I - NON-EXEMPT ITEMS  
 
1.   Apologies for Absence  

 
To receive apologies for absence (if any) 
 

2.   Declarations of Interest  
 
To receive declarations of interest (if any) 
 

3.   Minutes (Pages 1 - 4) 

Public Document Pack



 

 

 
To confirm the non-exempt minutes of the meeting of the Cabinet Member 
– Health and Communities held on 5 December 2019 
 

4.   To consider the joint report of the Executive Director for Economy, 
Transport and Environment, Executive Director for Adult Care, Executive 
Director for Commissioning, Communities and Policy, Director of Finance & 
ICT and Director of Public Health on Budget Monitoring 2019-20 Period 9 
(Pages 5 - 12) 
 

5.   To consider the non-exempt reports of the Director of Public Health on:  
 

5 (a)   Recovery from Alcohol and Drug Dependence Grant (Pages 13 - 16) 
 

5 (b)   Reducing the harm of substance misuse in Derbyshire (Pages 17 - 20) 
 

6.   Exclusion of the Public  
 
To move “That under Regulation 21 (1)(b) of the Local Authorities 
(Executive Arrangements) (Access to Information) (England)  Regulations 
2000, the public be excluded from the meeting for the following items of 
business on the grounds that they involve the likely disclosure of exempt 
information as defined in Paragraph(s)… of Part 1 of Schedule 12A to the 
Local Government Act 1972” 
 

PART II - EXEMPT ITEMS  
 
7.   Declarations of Interest  

 
To receive declarations of interest (if any) 
 

8.   Minutes (Pages 21 - 22) 
 
To confirm the exempt minutes of the meeting of the Cabinet Member – 
Health and Communities held on 5 December 2019 
 

 



 

PUBLIC                                                                                      
                           
MINUTES of a meeting of the CABINET MEMBER FOR HEALTH AND 
COMMUNITIES held on 5 December 2019 at County Hall, Matlock. 
 

PRESENT 
 

Councillor C Hart – Cabinet Member 
 

Also in attendance: Councillors Stuart Swann and Ron Mihaly 
 
42/19  MINUTES  RESOLVED that the non-exempt minutes of the 
meeting of the Cabinet Member for Health and Communities held on 11 October 
2019 be confirmed as a correct record and signed by the Cabinet Member.  
 
43/19  BUDGET MONITORING 2019-20 PERIOD 7 The joint report 
outlined the revenue budget position of the health and Communities portfolio 
for 2019-20 up to the end of 31 October 2019.  There was a projected year-end 
underspend of £56,000; this included the projected year-end overspend against 
the ring-fenced Public Health Grant of £94,830.  The significant areas that made 
up the projection were detailed within the table within the report. 
 
 The Trading Standards underspend was attributed to planning for the 
achievement of the future savings requirement for the period 2019-22, one-off 
funding to support older people in relation to scams and doorstep crime, 
vacancies and additional income. 
 
 A risk level of five had been identified around the national shortage of 
Pathologists and the impact by increasing fees, with the coroner’s service.  The 
total Earmarked Reserves were listed within the report, totalling £10.306m to 
support future expenditure. 
  
 RESOLVED to note the report. 
 
44/19  TARGETED SUBSTANCE MISUSE SERVICE FOR CHILDREN 
AND YOUNG PEOPLE  The Cabinet Member was asked to approve a 
procurement exercise for the provision of a targeted substance misuse service 
for children and young people identified as using drugs, alcohol and other 
psychoactive substances and to delegate the approval of the award to the 
Director of Public Health. 
 
 Statistical data from the NHS Digital’s Smoking, Drinking and Drug use 
among Young People report, which surveyed pupils aged 11-15 in secondary 
schools across England, was listed in the report.  National guidance on the 
provision of substance misuse services for children and young people, stated 
that there should be an integrated system of universal prevention, targeted and 
specialist services, provided primarily through schools and focus on building 
resilience.  The role of targeted services was to screen higher risk populations 
to identify young people using drugs or alcohol, with the aim of preventing 

Page 1

Agenda Item 3



 

experimental and recreational substance use developing into problematic or 
dependent use. The service would refer those identified as needing more 
intensive support.  Specialist services deliver care-planned support, which may 
include psychosocial, pharmacological and harm reduction interventions.  
‘Stepped-down’ support for children and young people who had completed 
specialist treatment might also be offered. 
 
 The County Council already commissioned a specialist substance 
misuse service for young people under the age of 18, which was delivered by 
Change Grow Live (CGL).  Following the national pattern the numbers of young 
people entering structured treatment in Derbyshire had fallen over recent years: 
 

Year No. in treatment 

2015/16 159 

2016/17 135 

2017/18 80 

2018/19 93 

 
 However, another factor in this fall was the current lack of a targeted 
service in Derbyshire.  Following a departmental review within Childrens 
Services, it had been decided that the department no longer had capacity to 
continue this service so a procurement exercise was required to ensure a 
targeted service was available for children and young people in Derbyshire. 
 
 The proposed service would screen populations of children and young 
people, using a validated screening tool; deliver harm reduction interventions to 
those children and young people identified as using substances; refer those in 
need of more intensive support to the specialist service; and offer continued 
support to children and young people who had completed their planned 
programme of care with the specialist service. 
 
The budget for the service was £0.112m per annum, with a planned start date 
of 1 April 2020, under an initial 4 year (2+2) contract. This would align with the 
contract period of the specialist service to allow the future option of integration. 
 
 RESOLVED to (1) approve the proposal to undertake a procurement 
exercise for a targeted substance misuse service for children and young people; 
and 
 
 (2) agree to delegate the approval of the award to the Director of Public 
Health. 
 
45/19  FOOD AND FEED SERVICE PLAN 2019/20  The Cabinet Member 
was asked to approve the Food and Feed Service Plan for 2019/20 in 
accordance with the Food Standards Agency’s (FSA) ‘Framework Agreement 
on Official Feed and Food Controls by Local Authorities’ (the Framework 
Agreement), the Trading Standards Division produces a Service Plan for Food 
and Feed. This Plan set out a proposed programme of activity to seek 
compliance with food and feed requirements. 

Page 2



 

 
 The Framework set out what the Food Standards Agency expects from 
local authorities in their delivery of official controls on feed and food law.  It also 
sought to ensure that the UK fulfils its obligations with regard to current 
European legislative requirements. The Agreement sets out the planning and 
delivery requirements of feed and food official controls, based on the existing 
statutory Codes of Practice. 
 
 The local authority had a duty to enforce food safety legislation that was 
intended to ensure that food was safe to eat and that it complied with a wide 
range of standards and labelling requirements.  The County Council was 
responsible for ensuring feed businesses throughout the feed chain from farms 
through to manufacturers comply with legal requirements on feed labelling, 
safety and hygiene. 

 
 The Trading Standards Service provided advice and information to local 
businesses on the requirements of the law and how best to comply. To check 
compliance with food and feed standards and feed hygiene requirements, the 
service undertook inspections or visits to local businesses. The complexity and 
size of the business and the type of food or feed produced or sold would 
determine the frequency of visits in accordance with nationally agreed ‘risk 
assessment’ policies.  The Division also undertook project work to test 
compliance within a particular trade sector or food and feed products. Details of 
projects planned were contained within the Food and Feed Service Plan. 

 
 The draft Plan was attached to the report at Appendix 1 and it was 
proposed to publish it on the County Council website. 
 
 RESOLVED to approve the Food and Feed Service Plan 2019/20. 
 
46/19  ACTION GRANTS PROGRAMME  The report provided an update 
on the applications received and approved under round six of the Action Grants 
Programme.  This enabled local groups to apply for three levels of funding 
across four grant areas (youth activity, community safety, community activity 
and physical/sports activity). 
 
 All projects needed to meet particular criteria and were reviewed by an 
officer panel.  Executive Directors had delegated responsibility for the approval 
of recommended projects that fell within their remit.  The deadline for the receipt 
of applications for round six was 30 September 2019. 
 
 Under the Community Activity Grant scheme, 76 small applications were 
submitted.  Of these 62 were approved to the value of £28,889; the details of 
these applications were listed separately at Appendix A. 
 
 Under Community Safety Grants, four out of six small grant applications 
were approved to the value of £2,000; the details of these were listed at 
Appendix B. 
  

Page 3



 

 Comprehensive monitoring of the Programme, including the take up of 
the different levels of grants as well as geographical coverage, took place 
regularly to ensure equality of access across different communities in 
Derbyshire, particularly over the first twelve months. This was to ensure that 
there was some flexibility in the Programme and that spend on the programme 
was maximised.  It would also help recognise those communities where more 
support might be required. 
 
 RESOLVED to note the approved applications as set out in the report. 
 
47/19  EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC   RESOLVED - to exclude the 
public from the meeting during the consideration of the remaining items on the 
agenda to avoid the disclosure of the kind of information detailed in the following 
summary of proceedings: 
 
SUMMARY OF PROCEEDINGS CONDUCTED AFTER THE PUBLIC HAD 
BEEN EXCLUDED FROM THE MEETING 
 
1. To consider the late exempt report of the Executive Director of 
Commissioning, Communities and Policy on Contract for Audio Visual and 
Video Conferencing System for Coroner’s Service (contains information relating 
to the financial or business affairs of any particular person (including the 
Authority holding that information)). 
 
 

 

Page 4



PUBLIC 
Author: David King  Agenda Item No: 

    
 

DERBYSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL 
 

CABINET MEMBER, HEALTH AND COMMUNITIES 
 

3 February 2020 
 

 Joint Report of the Executive Director of Adult Care, Executive Director 
of Commissioning, Communities and Policy, Executive Director of 

Economy, Transport and Environment, Director of Public Health and 
Director of Finance & ICT   

 
BUDGET MONITORING 2019-20 – PERIOD 9 (as at 31 December 2019) 

 (HEALTH AND COMMUNITIES PORTFOLIO) 
 
1. Purpose of the Report 
 
To provide the Cabinet Member with an update of the Revenue Budget 
position of the Health and Communities portfolio for 2019-20 up to the end of 
31 December 2019 (Period 9). 
 
2. Information and Analysis 
 
2.1 Forecast Summary 
 
The net controllable budget for the Health and Communities portfolio is 
£4.403m. This figure includes the Public Health base budget of £39.477m 
which is fully funded by the ring-fenced Grant. 
 
The Revenue Budget Monitoring Statement prepared at period 9 indicates that 
there is a projected year-end underspend of £0.230m. Included in this figure is 
the projected year-end overspend against the ring-fenced Public Health Grant 
budget of £22,382. 
 
The portfolio has incurred additional costs of almost £19,000 due to the Toddbrook 
Reservoir Whaley Bridge incident, which has been funded from The Council’s 
General Reserve. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 5

Agenda Item 4



The significant areas which make up this projection are shown in the table 
below: 

 

  
Controllable 

Budget 
Projected 
Actuals 

Forecast 
Over/(Under) 

Spend 

  £m £m £m 

Public Health – Live Life 
Better Derbyshire service  

2.410 1.696 (0.714) 

Public Health – support 
Children’s Centre delivery 
April-September met from in-
year underspends 

0.000 0.500 0.500 

Support Public Health 0-19 
services during transition to 
s75 agreement met from in-
year underspends 

0.000 0.205 0.205 

Public Health – additional 
funding to improve Social 
Connectedness met from in-
year underspends  

0.000 0.200 0.200 

Trading Standards – reduced 
staffing costs following re-
structure to deliver savings 
requirement for period 2019-
22 

1.297 1.101 (0.196) 

Other minor balances 0.696 0.471 (0.225) 

Total 4.403 4.173 (0.230) 

 
 
2.2 Key Variances 
 
2.2.1. Trading Standards underspend £0.196m  

 
The current Trading Standards underspend can be attributed to 
planning for the achievement of the future savings requirement for the 
period 2019-22, one off funding to support older people in relation to 
scams and doorstep crime - this funding is yet to be committed, 
vacancies and additional income. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 6



2.3 Budget Savings Targets 
  

Budget Reductions £m   

Prior Year B/f 0.000   

Current Year 0.157   

Total 
Savings Target 

0.157   

 

 
The table below shows performance against each initiative. 
 

Identified Savings 
Initiatives 

Budget 
Reduction 
Amount 

Forecast to 
be Achieved 
by the end of 

2019-20 

(Shortfall)/ 
Additional 
Savings 

Achieved 

  £m £m £m 

Emergency Planning 0.057 0.057 0.000 

Registrars 0.050 0.050 0.000 

Community Safety 
Projects 

0.049 0.049 0.000 

Trading Standards 
Restructuring 

0.050 0.050 0.000 

Total of Identified 
Savings Initiatives 

0.206 0.206 0.000 

Shortfall/(Surplus) of 
Identified Savings 

(0.049)   

Total 
Savings Target 

0.157 0.206 0.049 

    

 
2.4 Growth Items and One-Off Funding 
 
The portfolio received the following additional one-off budget allocations in 
2019-20: 
 

2.4.1 Trading Standards – Older People - £48,000 one-off 
 

Provide a sustained Awareness raising programme over 3 years to 
reduce the number of instances of fraudulent activity against Older 
People. 
 

Page 7



2.4.2 Community Safety - Digital MOT funding from POCA - £14,000 
one-off 

 
Technical development of Digital MOT on-line risk assessment to be 
hosted by Safer Derbyshire website. 

 
2.5 Risks 
 
There is a risk that the following issue will negatively impact on the portfolio’s 
forecast outturn position reported in the Forecast Summary above: 
 

Service Risk Sensitivity* Likelihood 

    £m 
1 = Low, 
5 = High 

Coroners  
National shortage of 
Pathologists will impact by 
increasing fees 

0.069-0.101 
per year 

5 

 
*Sensitivity represents the potential negative impact on the outturn position 
should the event occur. 
 
2.6 Earmarked Reserves 
 
Earmarked reserves totalling £10.411m are currently held to support future 
expenditure.  Details of these reserves are as follows: 
 

Reserve Description Amount 

  £m 

Public Health Reserve 7.601 

Public Health s256/Externally Funded Reserve 0.254 

Community Safety – Domestic Violence 2.060 

Community Safety  0.021 

Syrian Refugee Project 0.079 

Emergency Planning - Reservoirs 0.078 

Proceeds of Crime 0.135 

Trusted Trader 0.014 

Trading Standards - Scams 0.087 

Coroners – new accommodation at Derby 0.042 

Coroners – new Case Management system 0.040 

Total Earmarked Reserves 10.411 

 

Page 8



2.7 Debt Position 
 
Debt figures relating to Public Health are included in the Adult Social Care and 
Health Department’s figures as reported in the Adult Care portfolio month 9 
budget monitoring report. Figures for the remainder of the portfolio are 
included in the Commissioning, Communities and Policy Department’s figures 
as reported in the Council Services portfolio month 9 budget monitoring report. 
 
3. Financial Considerations 
 
As detailed in the report. 
 
4. Other Considerations 
 
In preparing this report the relevance of the following factors has been 
considered: financial, legal, prevention of crime and disorder, equality of 
opportunity; and environmental, health, human resources, property, social 
value and transport considerations. 
 
5. Key Decision 
 
No. 
 
6. Call-In 
 
Is it required that call-in be waived in respect of the decisions proposed in the 
report? No. 
 
7. Background Papers 
 
Held on file within the Adult Social Care and Health, Commissioning 
Communities and Policy and Economy Transport and Environment 
Departments. Officer contact details – Karen Howes extension 38730 
(Emergency Planning), Paula Littlewood extension 38922 (Community Safety, 
Trading Standards, Coroners and Registrars) and David King extension 38758 
(Public Health), 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 9



8. Officer Recommendations 
 
That the Cabinet Member notes the report. 
 

 
 
 
    Helen Jones          Emma Alexander 

         Executive Director - Adult  Executive Director – Commissioning, 
    Social Care and Health           Communities and Policy   
                   
  
           Dean Wallace           Mike Ashworth 
           Director of Public Health       Executive Director – Economy, 
               Transport and Environment 
      
 
     Peter Handford 
    Director of Finance & ICT

Page 10



Restricted 
 
 

 

Page 11



This page is intentionally left blank



PUBLIC 
Author: Sam Critchlow  

 

 
 

DERBYSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL 
 

MEETING WITH CABINET MEMBER, HEALTH AND COMMUNITIES 
 

3 February 2020 
 

Report of the Director of Public Health 
 

RECOVERY FROM ALCOHOL AND DRUG DEPENDENCE GRANT 
  

1. Purpose of the report: 
 
To seek Cabinet Member approval for the award of £147,388 for five organisations 
from the Recovery from Alcohol and Drug Dependence Grant.  
  
2. Information and analysis: 
 
Evidence shows that individuals in receipt of drug and alcohol treatment are more 
likely to recover from addiction if they can access supportive arrangements 
alongside treatment, which encourage and improve employability, settled 
accommodation, strong relationships, self-esteem, purposeful activities and 
healthy diet/nutrition. As a result of this, the Recovery from Alcohol and Drug 
Dependence Grant programme was developed. The grant programme has been 
running for the last four years to fund projects that provide recovery activities 
across Derbyshire. 
 
In September 2019 organisations were invited to apply for the next round of the 
12 month grant that will run from 1 April 2020. Organisations could apply for a 
maximum of £40,000 for their recovery projects.  
 
In total, ten applications were received from organisations across Derbyshire. 
These applications were evaluated by four members of the Public Health 
Commissioning Team against criteria including: the activities the project would 
offer; the benefits of the project to participants; how the participants would be 
recruited; how outcomes would be measured; and the value for money offered by 
the project. There are five organisations that are recommended for funding and 
five organisations who do not meet the objectives of the grant. The organisations 
who are recommended for funding are listed below. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 13

Agenda Item 5(a)



  

 

Funded organisations  
 

Name Service Provided Cost 

A-Spire Right: 
Chesterfield 
Football Club 
Community Trust 
 
Funded for the 
last 4 years 

This project is a multi-sport offer via an 8 week 
programme of physical activities and related 
theory aiming to build confidence and self-
esteem in order to create changes in thinking 
towards health, wellbeing and habits. The 8 
week programme is delivered 4 times a year. In 
2019 the Trust won the Best Intervention Award 
from The National League Trust for this project. 
Covers Chesterfield, North East Derbyshire and 
Bolsover.  

£39,955 

Rhubarb 
Recovery 
Continued: 
Rhubarb Farm 
 
Funded for the 
last 4 years 

This organisation provides volunteering and 
training opportunities on a horticultural social 
enterprise project with an opportunity to gain a 
paid position at the farm via their micro-job 
scheme. Activities include gardening, training 
opportunities on site, maintaining abstinence 
and relationship building. Covers Bolsover, 
North East Derbyshire and Chesterfield.  

£37,098 

Growing Lives: 
Derventio 
Charitable Trust 
Funded for the 
last 3 years 

Provide mentoring support, gardening, furniture 
recycling, cookery, arts and crafts. People will be 
signposted to learning and job opportunities and 
will be taught to produce healthy meals. Covers 
Erewash and Amber Valley. 

£34,670 

RISE: The Zink 
Project 
 
Funded for the 
last 4 years 

The project provides work coaching to 
participants in recovery from drug or alcohol 
dependence in order to improve physical and 
emotional health and access work experience 
and employment. Participants will have the 
opportunity of undertaking a ‘micro-job’ for which 
they will be paid and gain work experience. This 
project mainly covers the High Peak area, but is 
open to anyone across Derbyshire. 

£28,250 

The Derbyshire 
Veterans Group 
Recovery and 
Wellbeing Hub 
 
Funded for the 
last 2 years 

To provide a ‘Veterans Hub’ within the 
Chesterfield area where ex Armed Forces 
personnel (including family members) can 
access support around their substance misuse, 
signposting and advice around other health and 
welfare issues. The organisations also provides 
group sessions, support into education, group 
activities and telephone support for those who 
cannot attend the Hub. This is available for 
veterans across Derbyshire. 

£7,415 

 Total £147,388 

Page 14



  

 

 
In addition to the support these projects will provide, Derby County Community 
Trust is grant-funded by Public Health to deliver activities for people in recovery 
from substance misuse issues in South Derbyshire, Erewash and Amber Valley. 
In areas not covered by the recovery projects, the Commissioning Team will work 
with locality leads to identify community projects which offer activities which may 
support recovery. 
 
Once approved this round of grant funding will end on the 31 March 2021. From 
April 2021 it is the intention of the Public Health Commissioning Team that the 
grant programme will end and organisations have been informed. Future 
requirements for recovery activity shall be procured by undertaking a competitive 
process in line with the Councils Financial Regulations and Standing Orders. This 
new approach will be developed over the next 12 months. In preparation for this, 
the current projects will be reviewed and evaluated throughout the next 12 months 
to inform requirements for the procurement process and ensure equitable 
coverage is available for all who require support across the county. Contracting 
arrangements will enable organisations to develop their activities further and plan 
their work on a more long-term basis. 
 
3.  Communication 
 
We have communicated with all relevant parties that there are likely to be changes 
to the way the programme is funded from April 2020 which have been positively 
received. We are looking to develop an outcomes based approach which 
maximises the resources we have in a sustainable manner. We will ensure we 
support them through this change and continue to communicate any decisions in 
a timely manner.    
 
4. Financial Considerations 
 
The amount of funding for the proposed successful organisations is £147,388. If 
approved this funding would begin from 1 April 2020 for 12 months. The funding 
will come from the Public Health ring-fenced grant budget for 2020/21. 
 
5. Legal Considerations 
 
The Council’s standard grant agreement shall be used to set out the terms and 
conditions for which the grant is made. This includes conditions for clawback of 
funding in certain circumstances and also state that the Council is not liable for 
any employment liabilities.  
 
As outlined above the intention will be to change from the grant programme to 
contracting arrangements for organisations to deliver recovery support activities. 
The Commissioning Team will consult with stakeholders from April 2020 regarding 

Page 15



  

 

the change of approach. The Team will also work closely with the Legal 
Department to ensure the proposals meet legal requirements.  
 
6. Other considerations 
 
In preparing this report the relevance of the following factors has been considered: 
financial, legal, prevention of crime and disorder, equality of opportunity, human 
resources, environmental, health, property and transport considerations. 
  
7. Background papers 
 
Cabinet paper, 20 September 2018 
“Developing the Recovery Communities in Derbyshire” 
Cabinet Member, Health and Communities paper 07 September 2017 
“Developing the Recovery Communities in Derbyshire” 
Cabinet Member, Health and Communities paper 20 September 2016 
“Developing the Recovery Communities in Derbyshire” 
Cabinet Member, Health and Communities paper 01 September 2015  
“Drug and Alcohol Treatment Recovery Services” 
  
8. Key Decision 
 
No  
 
9. Call-in 
 
Is it required that call-in be waived for any decision on this report? No 
 
10. Officer's Recommendation 
 
That Cabinet member approval is given to award the five organisations who meet 
the Recovery from Alcohol and Drug Dependence Grant funding criteria and to 
further develop the recovery communities in Derbyshire from 2021 as detailed in 
the report. 
 

Dean Wallace 
Director of Public Health 

Page 16



PUBLIC 
Author: Martyn Shore  

 
 

 
DERBYSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL 

 
MEETING WITH CABINET MEMBER, HEALTH AND COMMUNITIES 

 
03 February 2020 

 
Report of the Director of Public Health 

 
REDUCING THE HARM OF SUBSTANCE MISUSE IN DERBYSHIRE 

 
 
1.      Purpose of the report 
 
To seek Cabinet Member approval for the award of a Recovery Month grant to the 
value of £770 to Derventio Housing Trust. 
  
2. Information and analysis 
 
Recovery Month takes place in September each year and is a national event. It 
has been celebrated in Derbyshire for the past four years and is an opportunity to 
showcase recovery from substance misuse, to reduce stigma and to highlight that 
recovery is achievable. Local activities have previously concentrated on large 
scale events which take considerable resources to organise and have tended to 
locate in Chesterfield as our largest town. Due to this, a number of smaller but 
active recovery organisations from other parts of the county have struggled to take 
part in a meaningful way, and recovery month in Derbyshire was starting to lose 
momentum. On 13 November 2018 the Strategic Director for Adult Care approved 
the allocation of £20,000 over a three-year period to encourage individuals, 
treatment services and recovery organisations to undertake their own projects, 
events and activities in their own localities. This approach is more inclusive of our 
geographically diverse county and has revitalised the efforts of both local and 
countywide organisations and their service users.  
 
We have had a successful first year in 2019, grant funding nine organisations and 
sixteen separate events/activities. Events have included fly fishing on Ladybower 
Reservoir, a Recovery Football Festival, a community café and various 
organisations taking part in the annual recovery games in Doncaster. Overall, over 
300 people have taken part in Derbyshire Recovery Month activities in 2019. 
 
An annual showcase event recognising achievements around recovery was held 
at County Hall in November 2019. Feedback from the event and about the first 
year of this new approach in general has been very positive. 
 
 
 

Page 17

Agenda Item 5(b)



  

  

It is intended to run year 2 in a similar way to the first year. We will also aim to 
increase the reach of Recovery Month across the county into new communities as 
the first year received such positive feedback.  
 
For year 2 there will be two deadlines: an early deadline (Friday 06 December 
2019) for events that cannot take place in Recovery Month, and a later deadline 
(Friday 19 March 2020) for events in Recovery Month itself. 
 
An application was received for the first deadline and was considered by an 
evaluation team comprising the Public Health Lead and the Health Improvement 
Practitioner for substance misuse using a pre-determined, objective scoring 
template. This organisation successfully scored against the scoring criteria.  
 
It is therefore proposed to provide a grant to the following organisation for recovery 
activities: 
 

 
 

 
Name 

 
Location 

 
Event 

 
Service Provided 

 
Cost 

1. 
 
 

Derventio 
Housing Trust 

Various locations 
across 
Derbyshire 

Orienteering 
events 

 Maps 

 Compass 

 Parking 

 Lunch 

 Clothing with 
logo on 

£770 

 
This organisation currently delivers projects with people in recovery in Derbyshire. 
 
3 Social Value considerations 
 
Social value benefits of recovery are highlighted by the ‘Life in Recovery’ Study 
(September, 2015) by Professor David Best from Sheffield Hallam University. This 
study showed that people moving into recovery were more likely to be in education 
or employment, to volunteer, eat healthily and take regular exercise.  
  
4. Financial considerations 
 
The total amount allocated to develop Recovery Month activity in Derbyshire is 
£20,000 over three years. This was previously approved from underspends from 
the demand-led elements of the substance misuse budget which is met through 
the Public Health Grant. There is sufficient budget remaining to award this grant. 
 
5.       Legal/ HR considerations 
 
The Council’s standard grant agreement shall be used to set out the terms and 
conditions for which the grant is made, which provides for clawback of funding in 
certain circumstances and shall also provide that the Council is not liable for any 
employment liabilities. 

Page 18



  

  

 
6.       Other considerations 
 
In preparing this report the relevance of the following factors has been considered: 
prevention of crime and disorder, equality of opportunity, environmental, health, 
property and transport considerations. 
  
7. Background papers 
 
Adult Care Senior Management Team paper 13 November 2018 “Reducing the 
harm of substance misuse in Derbyshire” 
 
Paper for Cabinet Member, Health and Communities 11th April 2019 “Reducing 
the harm of substance misuse in Derbyshire” 
 
Paper for Cabinet Member, Health and Communities 27th June 2019 “Reducing 
the harm of substance misuse in Derbyshire” 
  
8. Key Decision: No 
 
9. Call-in:  
 
Is it required that call-in be waived for any decision on this report? No 
 
10. Officer's Recommendation 
 
That the Cabinet Member for Health and Communities 
 

1. approves the award of a grant to Derventio Housing Trust to the value of 
£770 as detailed in the report to support Recovery Month 2020 in Derbyshire 
and 
 

2. agrees to accept further reports relating to the award of other small grants 
to support Recovery Month in Derbyshire. 

 
 
 
 

Dean Wallace 
Director of Public Health 

Page 19



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 21

Agenda Item 8
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Minutes
	4 To consider the joint report of the Executive Director for Economy, Transport and Environment, Executive Director for Adult Care, Executive Director for Commissioning, Communities and Policy, Director of Finance & ICT and Director of Public Health on Budget Monitoring 2019-20 Period 9
	5(a) Recovery from Alcohol and Drug Dependence Grant
	5(b) Reducing the harm of substance misuse in Derbyshire
	8 Minutes

